
+

a  oHil       s   I.   HEI,EH       A  s       a   OH  lr       .,./  II,  I=E  s        B  o  0  I  H

®,,,,,,,,,®,

Chapter  17



Ioint   sT.    mhT-i;N   As   foint   ``-,`II.icas   BOOTH.

8:art;#Sh:iz:o:se:iA:]o:;th:#:::ee,::s:%i:S:t:.nsH::c;:i:;b)ypbr:o:d%;!eefaegt;

ixapt%uarfiicat:gn bo°£riE::ntEr:£t°nana  :a::t:*ial  or  an  asth-
The  history  o£  Hood  County  says:    "St.  Helen had a

_.:_  _   .I.

iE

)i

John  St.   Zlelen,   of  Granbury,   IIood  County,   Te]r.as,   claLimed  that   he  was

John  -,.'ilkes  Booth.     This,   according  to  jT.finis  L.   Bates,   to  t`7hom  he  made  the  alleged

confession,   occurred   sometime  bet'`.I/een  1872  and  1878,   while  i.,r.   Bates  was  a  "1a,wyer

yet  in  his  teensS"

In  a±,  1921,  the  author  had  intervievts  with all  persons  then  in

Granbury  a.nd  Glenrose,   Texas,   1.r;ho  had  been  there   in  1872-1878  and  knev/  anything

about   John  St.   }ielen,and  their  sworn  statements  i.7ere  taken®       These  are  p.rinted

in  the  appendix  to  this  chapter.

MrTht-eT5|i5teT5|hatthisiHTa-nsi=THT€l-e-ri--wasoneolT
his first clients and that he ran a salcon at Glenrose Mills,
a  few  miles  south  of  Granbury.    Mr.  Bates  describes  a

i:§Pihe:t€°#;::?:nfje#i:e§i::a::§ei;i:itv:;r;I:`;::::}%irro:ij:i%it::v:::(i:e:i::a;t;'    [

i:n:Bu:;tf:u:I.!:ecsie:a£:ae;,oastc::;'Fd:;ecd:j§;,ife:`;#ii:::a:i!;:?oe€ej.I:::i

i:r;h°eusco:u|3e:i:eel;ts];neahk£Sa83;:C:'£aTsS::r..{r===:!hi=L(1)

_P±a-its_8¥e=n#
§j;Sir:;;sutt#netayE:baau:r;£Zri'dBf:t:e¥

:ei:!St:t§:i:o§u::cie:t;°:P,:!e;ntm:e::eeie¥j
business  did  not  seem  to  be  a

al:i£:t:d:l!:;i:ii:::::i;::jc:i:lil:::o:tF::e:
te`€est   in   it   and   trusted   at   all

:§j§e:sra:::r§:#r#[¥e:a:§t:;p:::i:n:i.

ieie¥b:a:gt::a=!:e;n:;[t::i:,:ng,y=:.e:ic:;:

;x:?i;;::e:u;r:e;i3i,rn:ia:iciii':ge:£c:!rpe:;

.  ;::E:a#:h::e:zs¥r:i:i;§[±hewjz:a::#:t:::;g:::t;#;i:h§yF::tr::£[:sa:Trgfj;:h:a§{
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i¥ff6ei s:s:te:nerr±s:i::sa,a:a::  ,

£;;:Son:e:a±.nt£?e:€::#o}Sf:tcycpod:gj:    I
i#gs to°ne°]odf S::nE:ireyn.srefsjfeenndt§;   T~
states  that  "at  no   time  did   St.   Helen-ever  ha.ve  more
money  th`an  he  could  have  made  in  his  business."

in  fhi¥. St:°Sik:it:hw£:rye3rkaend a°J i:: `£jcsa'san,eo:a?aEehr:

t::##:n#n¥j,:jtie;d¥:ijs::yi#:;:°€uh[§;t!j]¥!,ii:±:g;;:a:i#j#Sr:[§iij;

said  that  he  "never  knew  or  heard  of  St.  Helen  having

;:;d;Fe;::s;!p:i:;::fisi:e;i::wyftoiu;fs:e;i;:;h:;s;c??;::ir;gs?,,:d;e;:ai:.:
:ffa:::'taon€uit::Xt:i::S;hb;]secc]'au;em.Waiv#::j€°ya¥d;nw;athv:::

g;rtdhetoB:t;tF#Ls::mj:t,?.nceswillservealllaterphases
Mr.  Bates,  in  conversations with the writer,  indicated

a  number  of  leads  that  he claimed  would prove  that  the

Laii:i]:ce°sft!#mY#oshn8°s::hH¥iaesn¥#a8te:eg:]aDra;fa
S:,irgfs:#:;:ntwetroesa£`o;arheof#''¥a€Fi;Ct:dd:ius9onn:.Si°ary
become  "fact."

;£ji::;:g:E:;i;;:;a§:ro;::i;a:£;y:s:ij§:e,:o:a::i;r:jo§§:jt;::##i§i§:i:;§ij

;h;e;i:ji::t¥c%;;;yam::iai!jtiiFn!j||
dence    in    family    names    was
proof   conclusive   to   the   man
from  Missouri  and  Bates  that

i¥T:f:¥;i::::3¥:d:1i::eiiif;rai:::;:tit
Booth.

The Missouri man was inter-
viewed  in  his  home  town.    The
story he told  the writer did not
agree  in many  details  with that

:i:;o::eddbt#a¥rihBe=teriiys::ri=g

::-:-:_I::==_::=:i::::I:::-i:-:::::::::-:=l=_:-_::::_:::-::

:3getho?tE°dfwi:h3o¥i[khe:da8fnh{£cr°ons'¥tEeersf°ono:!#t:Wa`;
===i=:-------_::=-i::-:---::::-=::_:_-:_-:if=::_i_::---=___--_----:-:::::i::=i_:i:

_ij;i;u:;i#u::#:ie:an:,:t;;:!};d;°gi,°!:i;t:y:#a:.oe;:;r::§r;a:t§:;irl£:;;;,ie;i
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-|aEalfty-w-ith -even  thoseiTIL16  better  iniddle  claT55Els-~6f

rh::'nbouta!£r:::*°ansej:kse:C±:ig::i]e:tanc:ur]edspbeect:u,1,e¥

;!jglj;::n;eii£::i::;#::i:::gb;i:ii#;b¥iaii'!i'!;:v;:id::ii:iEe;o::
Con.i¥£:S£:Susrs°fofh;:ti°rwsno:iua!eri:%j#.e::;reaesnat£:it;;:S:.nt,

i#i;,;o::rs;`t:ot:i:sas:'e:zgj#c§:E;egi.ii;eeie:::gf:ge=;er:e:I?o#;,ad:Ss,

§:in;'€tr:tinhTS:I;#:,£jt:d:e:a£C£;::;dfo;£§:::£d;:£i#::ij€n:Sag:Sa6#
during our associations I never knew of his taking strong

;:ei::k,e:;i:::jca:b:agr:a:C§t#'cae:°o[r££}§::fehh#afastsnte:vbnea€CC!:iiiSaat¥:
fi?#uerse °off t£{esscah::a:i::REr=sL±:*o¥£gt£{q
j:::§j;;:;i::::i:::s§::;a;:ji§¥;tg:;iiii;]te;i:aim;§a:::::§ij:i:h;g#¥:e:i!i§j

¥d:;:;a::;§hi;;:ji§§Se;:t;#§¥:i:ri;e;:t:o;;i;iin:i:e:fd;i:hh:ia:i::o§]!E;e;r:

!§jn::jn:£:i::t:;y¥a::i:jti:;;°§St§:ts:C;::;::;;§nj:e;:r8:i:uy;:i:::LC:s±;§[:SEb::j§t;
book  or  have  any  in  his  possession.    He  was  considered

:nvder£:¥::ke,dd:afoa,n,de&'ew4„ag;,W,#asr,?u#g,%it!„%Pj;,t¢:;

:_:-I:--=--_-----i:ii:--=--i-__-i=--=i__:=i-::ii=i-

his  saloon  in a wagon,  and  claimed  that he could breathe
I_    _1`    ___          ___1__      _           ?__           A,_                    ___     _._     ,,better  when   in   the  open.

(2)

=t=e=i=_(2i3-)

i:%:;afErgsd:g?,:n.i:tit;:tei;re::S:t?oTcee#:?ii;:fi:eiv`:!¥;:

::_--:::-_-:-:::--;-::::__::=-:=:_=:==:_-::i-i--=:=:ii-_:=--:-::::-:-::-_-i:_=i_:::=:---i:--::-:
been  impossible  anyway  on  account  of  his  throat."

i,;s;!a:;eE:cia:r::;:oat:f;:I:e:E:,::::e::!s,gin::e::n:i;:tE[H::k,:.¥c:c:adii|;irt;
aii¥£ua`iydd5T]ikriecvBroan`a:!dme;e::dci:sue`df:.?ernda¥;g:£afra°cut?d|

think  it  was  MCDonald  who brought  St.  Helen to  Gran-

iii¥eg:E;ii:itini:::I:;f;;;§i::d;r#:itifi,injiii€:;1;I,:ai:d:r!)i{:§g§e§:::e!§;;
_mood.    Just  how  the  fight  started,  I  do  not  know,  but



rd-

::::--_:i:::_=:-:=_-::::_-I:::_:_:_:i::-i-:=::__:-_:-:i-::_=_::::I:_::--=-_=_-=::_:=--_:::_i--:::
told  in  the  history  of  Hood 12±)

;;#:rt;s::;:;§jg;:i::§jRE§..._stories
therefore,  did  not+ake  notes.

According  to  l'fr.   Bates8   the  confession  began  by  St.   Helen

saying,

"I  an  dying.     l`,iy  mane  is   John  .i'vrilkes  Booth  and  I  am  the

a.ssassin  of  President  Lincoln.     Get  a  picture  of  nyself  f r.om  under

the  pillow®     I  leave  it  \€rith  you  for  my  future  identiJ.ication.

Notify  my  brother,   Edwih  Booth,   of  New  York  city."

Then  f ollowed  a  recital  of  the  Booth  farchly  history,   \r/hich

was  of  previous  general  ne\'rspaper  knowledge.  The  instigator  of  the

crime  is   claimed  in  the  "confession"  to  have  been  Andrew  Johnson,
~

the  Vice-President,  who  desired  the  Presidency  cind  played  upon  the

southern  sympathies  of  John  1,-j'ilkes  Booth  to  execute  his  purpose.

.         .tife.iThis  a,ccusation  Bates  repeats  \r7ith  all  the  naiveneB.a  of  the  new

discoverer. (2.7/f'
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The  intimation  is  that  the  ver.y  fEict  that   St.   Helen  knew  of  this  great  secretg

vouched  for  the  truth  of  his  confession.     The  St.   Helen  "confession"  goes  on  to

say  that  preparatory  to  an  att©ri-ipt  i;o  kidmp  Lincoln,   ''David  E]   Herold  (the

conspirator  cap*ured  with  Booth)   and  I  left  'i`,'ashington,   D.a.,   to  A  point  nea.r

Richmond.     Returning,  we  stopped  the  night  of  the  13th {iay  of  jipril,   1865,   at

the  old  Surrattville  tavern,   ten  miles  south  of  J„7ashington£",a  (this  was  the

night  before  the  assassination)#the  statement  does  not  agree  with the  testi-

mony-at  the  Conspiracy  and  Surratt  trials,   of  John  Lloyd,   keeper  of  the  ta.vern.

The  testimony  of   C.D.   Hess,   nranager   of  Grover's   Theater,   ``L-.r`ashington,

fully  I.eported  in  Chapter  V,   sho\'7s  that  Booth  spend  some  time  in  the  theater

Thursday  afternoon  the  13th,   a.t  a  time  that  the  St.  Helen  "confession"  states

he  was  returning  from  Richmond.     The  ''confession"  and  the  knoun  facts  are  im-

possible  to  reconcile  on  this  point.

The  "conf ession"  declared  that  on  the  morning  of  the  fourteenth,

Booth  and  Hel`old  in  their  attempt  to  enter  `t,'.`ashington,   were  stopped  by  Feder'al

troops  at  the  East  Potomac  bridge  and  held  there  until  2  o'clock  in  the  afternoon:

"'where  we  made  satisfactory  explanations  and  were  permitted  to  enter  the  city  and

went  straight  to  the  17|rkwood  Hotel  arriving  about  3  o'clock. "
The fact is that his hair trimmed in WashT

Xit:I:38°t:t|92;3oma..t£:th8acyaiTgdca#]::d¥°T°hd;ai:rrbfeor;

ii;:;o:#f::s;:i::tsitijij,a;!e;s|r!r.::f!!:::;:eo::::n:a!iire|;::s:;|i.;
ke!swseeAnnnsa£X#Snu€rstet#etiv:gnL2°:uo:oSJidw3e:!ahB.ann.aEg:

n;a::f=:si;i:!s!:i|ti!aF::p:¥w;e:q:ii;*oj:#:i;5j:,:i;ia:t:ijd4sbiy#:i:,

by  t}^ie  above  and  others  quoted  in  the  -ch:pter  "How  Lincoln  li,\:et  Death,",  and  5t.

Helen's  "confession"   so  far  does  not  agree  with  the  evidence.

._-nlbeJ "confession"._ --_-
describes a  call  on  Vice-Prc§i- I

/?„drLth::£!:°l::;:°£o;::tot3oT°;#scaokpnaL:£fntc%eTn?=::n¥Po°ndtg°atfi'na3£
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--".wH€irvie-eFH€5IdeTrii|To-hits-6iilErnETd
to  me  and

i:;f:r;:tatnh::xscjtper€::::eo:nednt:pP,Pa;ecnotuT:gneort:;:¥ej:,s£:a

pS::€ei;ij¥§:ti;±{t§3:3:;:Sd;]¥:;:rr#jr§¥:ts:

io;,:E:T#ife:ed,:!f:i!!ysai#eo:firn:i#!e:s€,
came  as  a  shock to me.    While  i or the
moment  I  waited  and  then  said:    "To
kill  the   President  is  certain   death  to

the  city,  the  guests  of  President  Lin-

i;;n::ai:d.a:Sam;:i:!e:w?i:,e!rno,tF.a,i:nir:e:s¥.n::

;:v:en:ir::'£:en:::ino3ttor:.b:y:ih#af,ees:ioigi!

;:;i£:n£"Fs¥u::8g:S:{°tEay;hc:-a;eus,:ddesn:
:::fna8nedafrdr§S.eeGtr°aitthj;%:#'ntohtatat€:#a

;i,:e:d:::g:r#+t;gd:et;:i;{e;s:e:£¥sn:d¥::e:::p[raafj;:
assurances  I  will  dare  strike  the  blow

:ofr,o:ttheeph:o!iiss!nviaon:Tf?;i:srhea#i:t:;e:Eia::d!

::afnbtiihag;::::dur:s:fie,sha£¥r#i:f!
¥n°J'¢hba:,§uthdedreenf`oyrec,a`Leed::3mht::e;ii¥___

iftid:a:nE;eafet::::od:::,::cs:t:=:'::iiet;:::d::e!vee:::::dg:ia;:uF3f::h::r:n::ft

;ih;;t::fe:;t6:a;ihd:¥;;:ihme:ti:£:t::::Sa:c:ar;i:3i;t;Er::Co:r::%m;::`£a::i
that  day.' "

!u:¥:tiiii;iii:¥ii::¥;:|iirnic;;°;:Iiii:e;;;:r;eii

i:;fit.¥h§n:g:a,,:d:efot;£f;:,:pie,rrnE£:c;oku,.,fcdhn€h:e3eh3a:a:s€rgh:::3tecfao:rTo:rfoj

__I



F=
-7-

e  Drei555faifon-tor  t

:#:i:8;¥:;§°:t!¥tdii::E[:h:ijiiiaj:r§]fa::h¥e:°§:£:£!ait!jr;::;:::8;¥!%;dt:a§r!
opened  from  the  outside,  and  returned  to  the  Kirkwood

Fh:ted.ouldthneont`:aaife:eat::sir:,ya€edrrinegtervgi:t.Ojr:3:a:::

!n::,i;tt!:a:t:a::,r:#:`i:takn::is:,i:jn::f;!i;id!¥:,i:f:o##i

§h;::jigcci£:S:°it;h;;e::;t::r:j]g¥i#:fye§ai::¥g¥%e:ty¥t¥j:r:e;i::¥;:th§e§"``Make  as  sure  of  your  aim  as  I  have  done   in

=r;:ifefsngoufr°ron¥;ufo::?,?Pe.    For  in  your  complete  §uc.
:::]„Eehpe]i:d;r`::tiw:]i]iy:h£°r°otmhit¥is;nti:h:|braain.';resident

of  the  United  States,"  replied  Vice-President  Johnson,

;:;£e§::i;:gjd§::t;;::#g;:::s;,:jja;e¥e::a£¥aa,fi::d:::c3%:s:ew:g,:,
The  absurdity  of  St.   Helen's  alleged  statefi-tents,   reported  in  such

detail  by  jj,r.   Bates  from  memor.y,   thirty  years  after  they  vfere  made,   if  made  at

all,   is  shotm  when  compared  vtith  the  letter  left  by  Booth  f or  the  National

Intelligencer.,   his  diary,   and  Payne's  state!nent.   (See  Chapter  V.)
life-rm..biapecme,i=.3frty...er:,i,-t<-pwlf.,Tut

It  is  quite  strarige  that  t}iere  -tF7ere  never  any  witnesses  to  the  meetings

of  Johnson  arid  Booth,   par.ticularly  the  drinking  a.t  the  bar  of  the  Kirkwood  at

8:306¢.'#.     as  told  £  Bates;y7age  46.      j7hen  questioned  about  this#:bruary  9,1921,

1`m-r.   Bates  claimed  to  n:3   that  a  Colonel  Hopkins  told  him  that  he  had  served  the

drinks  to  Johnson  and  Booth  at  this  time,   but  that  the  Colonel  `.r/ould  not  a.llow

the  stat9ment  to  be  used  and  said  that  if  it  wasf  he,   the  Colonel,   -uyould  declare

it  `7/as  an  absolute  lie.     It  wase

As  we   have  seen  in  Chapter  14,   t`his   suggestion  thaLt  Andrew  Johnson  was

implicated  in  tl^,e  assassination  is  not  ne`f/I     lt  was  f irst  made  by  a  southern

lefider,   Bever`1y  Tucker.,   in  a  letter  addressed  "To  the  People  of  the  United  States,"

which  was  published  in  the  newspapers  during  1'.:ay,   1865,   and  no  evidence  has  ever

been  f ound  to  support  the  charges.

::,-..:...``:.;.-:..: --.-`      -.:`._.`i.,.`. -.  ` ....- ii_i::::=iij;;::-.:.-.i:i`.,..--::i=;ssisRE
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_.i¥e;:d::REa:F:ihi::;,i;;!i:.:#n:i;t!#es:;:ii',:

service  to the  South if  Lincoln were  removed,  is refuted

-i::::--:--::::_i-::-:_:--:-:_-_i:::1:::-:::_i-:_:__-:-:::=[::_::::i::::i::::::=:-::::::i==:==:_:-I-:_:_:-:::-::i::::-_::::

their  property confiscated.
Hontinuing  Mr.  Bates'

_(4)

evidence

Helen   describes  how  he  entered  the  box  and  shot  the
President  and-

:§inidiii:§t§:i!:;::i:u§iy;iii§i:i:,;ipi:§#:ti;i:e!:`§:i;:i;i;:;;eii;:rb;::ii
or  uneven  surface  on  the  Shin  bone.    This  I  did  not
notice  closely,  but  casually  it  appeared  to  have  been  a
wound  or  f racture."

e  conspiracy tri=rJ____--I-----I:--`5)
May  13,1865, a long_rid.ing the let i foot, slit up'iaifit:E€:;o`;Sjd:tat:g#Cii¥#e,i:§l€:i:i¥j;:a:;io!:eati.;%¥§d:i:

£::tnTeesnsti'onwassahy::8tth°ant'ip.w:;'£F.d#.;ze¢„7;e£!.g#/'e.g#?,
was broken.

Had  St.  Helen  been  John  Wilkes  Booth,  he  would

i:°gtg:hy::fa:go£:#£;:b:Ss¥a!iit:gi::tn:qt:ifte::d::h°:3 s#jage ,  t hi a  st at e!ie nt  s hot-JS

that  5t.   Helen  and  Bates  were  not.

ih¥chi-e#i::;ig:::i;:;;iii,!I!:ti;:ei,sa:h;!;:;:,i:=;::?:;Ehw:oi:

David  E.   Herold,
i]ack  of  ?he  theater  and  close  to  the  door  of  the  back

;¥;d;;i:;:ee::£!ii::¥:ii:a;ii§:a::i:s:iija§i::I:;i:°:i:;£o€djd:in::r;:::i::

ii:d;gI;:i;i:§j::;d::i;::;i:§::C::;:o:.i:a:;I,::{r:es::edr':;::a::;::ne:ds°i:t::„ < „Where ?„

iiliu;`it:i!t:.:Ii:i:%:::i::s;:ijei;i:isiii::i;i;i;!a!:fiiiij:¥s:f!:ii:

by  arrangement  was  being  held  by

---,-.------.----.- &L-
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¥teE¥d¥flT¥t;£Ea¥;RE:Edfd§

in:§jc:g3!;i::;I::c:i;S;:;:,Oil:=i§i::¥j:I;de:ij¥.t;:;§d§

;u;;ed:::i;:ini:a:!';g:,i%h,;ju;r#:ri;c:#a!;;dtEir:
the[SNj:::i:gTisveianjdfo:bt°huetatrhfs.St°£o::

#itqig]::'b;;°O:h:hf:fo¢¥:a'S::gut::%nMb]:d:Dar:.
went to the  home  of a southern  sympa-

:tizcehredbybetthweeennaTean°df5C:7:io¥khi::t¥:

#::ntnogxofetftese]d6tthodaa5mo£{figr::iJt;8£:;

#fts£'=i::fo!#S:s3;:;h:P::t:o:i:£°efufi?err:oiji
and  me  in.    But  he  called  his  overseer,

§t:ug::3nae£L=tth%eb££uft:k#:se;nfpftah3:hsa:nE:cm£::

E;Vn:rJiuhsftsb:Cakn,°fthaendo?eerasreehrj,S\Pv':snt:i

;i;:ri:i:i:too;;§j::;;:i:ri:,ii::i;i:!jc;k:;;;t:its;k::::i:.

;:g:x:,::#:ya,;{];:a,s::R;:;,:my:::a:rt:g:o,::;,uaF£:
this may have been a given  name, nick-
name or surname, I don't know how this

!iis:;!|,::;:::o#t:sinej:i!;i:,:n!s;:i;:e!c:ii:F;o;lie:r;n,:(gig::ftEe!r
to-Jones  story  in  Ch;pter.    V   .     rj.the
overseer  was  Franklin  Robey,   who  had
no  part  in  the  escape  of  Booth  and
I-terold  across  the  Potorrac!     according
to  Jones'   story,   P\obey  merely  cared  for
the  fugitives  until  Jones  himself  took
them  in  charge.)

" `Ruddy  told  me  (if IHTi5  be  his  frame)   that  someTlf

tch°e`n°neen'caMm°psebf':o:°£¥rmsaonudth°;f€£:f#paatfa:rn°o°cpksRT:::

:;:|rd:e;¥e::usT`'i#?i:jen,:y:ii:i:,::,ie::t:o:o!r:::d:ioa::a:r!:::

gE:!y:irasfao;us!eg:i!idt,ie:r't:,:h:-Ei,::g,ftv:ir;:I;%iosiir;;ig;::igteyp:iji

B.:aace¥ipn::a:boo::o€:ita°e3riav:ieE:;nrg:i::s:afaatnwne°ecnkth¥:`;eorhte¥g;::g

E.:nio:,¥#:i`,eait;*,n;|arr:lf:fh;,:ttofj,i:::b::::S:s:ii;;A:[k3i;y!c3¥gi:
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:-::-_:-:I:::-::-:=:::-:::::_:::::_:-:::::__:_i_:-:--:=:__::--::i:::::_:=l-:::-::i:-:-::_:i:-::::_-:_:::_:

a;s;:;;::i:§ja:;a#tn{§d;:::i:;;¥:a§;:os§g:r§,§y:s;;::;§t:;i;:{#e¥g;:i:i;:::a:
;Se°jg::is;'o]r€£feerrs:edBt:tflbaesfhoer€±h:::gtt,ryyo:,r=]Lneabsa:a:%8

#:`:§r;yobnT:¥:]s#dt:oEvedenrR:#Wgad:i+::;Xwa:aetrpe::I:e:Eo%us:t::b€ye:;i:
•f.;;eiafesrsYerr:fe¥raefifn£  £Sr Lueswijs,TthheeyJdiTvefra.Ct.  being  the

fro;`[tnhethweag:::y|'tahsin¥e#eaietttt:srde{tahr°yda:fdtpa{t:i#¥e%:

:uyt.S!fi%rouYetrhefs]°)Stcafnr,:¥a;yb:toe)k:t6asno]wwtahsatd::ie8re€

#:dhtE;°hs]£;£hgc]#pe#r##£sin£:¥a£Efdea:;'€;onrindhi[a:nys::a:n.::ieesta#
had  rendered  us,  for  an  a.mount,  as  I  now  remember  it,
of  about   sixty  pounds,   I  discovered   I  had   lost  these

ig:piis:o-:oeuat::ef,df::::a?:,:.?i:ihe:;;[:::e:rE:T::.I?;:d::br::g

i#,?g¥eli:,t::o6c:k::nFs?i:gii`i:::ehrfot:d::at:;n:::n#.eq:#.t:,;
I:Lt.i:F#;stbrf[r:et,#adgyRB::g:::eestdod;i:h::r°€£r::ayt§:o%:a:fsb:::

i¥:°!%°ev:i::o;*!:eigh:::d:tie;::bre::3:!oi:¥:c:e}dxpafs:Ptsie;d:tu£:§f:irSt£§

:;:rr::;;i;:;:,:b£B:::ngb;:o::;;;ett:t:etwE::hes:=o;:¢t:]§s%;o:;h;s:¥:i:

;i:;:eii;:£i:{fi§i§:::I;ui§:ilji§it§u:h;i::i;ir§nTiii¥r#|::{§;i:;I:oi;
and  Royal,  and  they  were  to  return  and  meet  me  the

ri:::foaymaettthheepGaaprerresttmhe°nE:'newd?efrfergcuo::¥e#°u[dde-

io:::;fje¥°;r:y:Ge:§i;e:tj::ot;P:tu§b:;C?[g:¥S;:i::ui:d;£iGii:|ev:§[n;d;:ji:P;P]§i§:#:
distance  westerly;   we   then  turned  and  rode  north  on
a  country  or  bridle  road  for  a  distance  of  about  three

gil::ea#eu:enhaa:i;g:iennb.%egereaancdeiutghge,eg::;:ttmg,oFue;

}§;i;f#;%:::::g;¥u:y:;:f:dy::;i;:;:i]t:?tile:y;£e,¥i£;;ih:o|r;e:fi;i;itg§:d:§s:
I -..--1  -I.--_I-     1,
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`'7About  I  oE?- -o-'€16ETk- in  tne  afternoon 6rATF-23,

i;w¥i;::i:i:::[jt:i:::h;iiie:±j:ii§;i:i:!ii!':i:r:i::;;n;Ss:I::#:::¥n§ditti§i

Jones,  Jett,  Bainbridge,  Ruggles,  Rollins,  and  the  Car-

;;I:::ch:]fos:o:d:i:::ye:rboo:u¥tst]:o::I'c;:ack::teo£:eo¥etlsft:a:I:cg::tot:h:a;

i::::i:iu§sufe;§o;:]§:ii;::S:i:S:i::jiidt;0;:r:g;i::h:;sio:;is;t:::SP;:i::%a:::t:igiii
::#eanvs:t:detE:ia,kj:;:Lsntfeamso]ng°d:11:rs:nr:::ift:ir+e:
coin."After  a  few  hours'  rest  for  myself  and  horse,  I

i#u:Shfe3d;got:[atr°::#:i::oent¥g:hst:,hti:S:i;:i:in8n:!#dft:iga::'::I:
creek bottom  some  distance  from  tfie  road ar]d  remained

i::r:;:]ei¥::£i.feEEef:rex:ymh°orrns!engr:m°bat:i:,ed€r?;egaeknfti€:
man  and  lady  at  a  little  country

-Tit  an  early  hour

without  further  incident  and  interest,  save  and  except

:i:i:S:ii:::ai:::t;i§:§i§i;h:i:o::i:;i:ai§;:e!:;i:i:ir::::::o§#C#:!#:;:

:]9xrtyabfr]:stYn°adasyosdta#es::¥ieyr£Egreact[qo:£tafnrcoem°fwfiafrtfiyei°d:
I,  as  well  as  my  horse,  was  about  worn  out,  and  I  was
theref ore  compelled  to  rest  for  about  a  week,  claiming
to  be  a  wounded  Confederate  soldier.    The  parties  with

#:sine:a#:PEeganwnaostanowwfdr°e¥e]:d#r:ndBuhteraf¥::nr8ec%:?:
ing  their  kind  attentions  and  needed  rest,  I  resumed  myJ:::;s¥g?:i:tf:.nt::ipn¥r,Psf;:s:p;;trfn?,;.:ir::ettint&h::I:SoE:,:n,I,i;I;

as  the. best  possible  hiding  place,  in  my  opinion.

__-I
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!d  withc;uiIT.TfrnTally±e
tion  the  Mississippi  River  and  crossed  the  same  at  what

¥¥;;gs:;Ineidti]s::aea::?£t%#;:tSi'sCs:::::;hi§rgit::t::rot:t.i:o#£;:nit':P:S:[i
reached  the  Indian  Territory,  where  I  remained  at  dif-

e;::r#:gpfr:o:n:::ss:;¥:ggi:I;a:gtt[i:eeblrna[ds:kgaia:T::;::tirpy::;°:u:

pha£:o!:rg::rE:;tuwgLf|:[e#f:a:!::3!l:nsgafifg:TBwoaost3r=uaghstpot..

S:i83Etjnwft:ebcaro:b°e¥twE:CdTBooth8tood.
E.  Porch where Booth died.
G.  Kitchen door at which Lieutenant Baker knocked.
H.  Shed.

LTfa|furfuad:Pta:=e:s#ofoh|hsneggA:b::ak:a£:u;top:e::'effr.;'mi£:3%§

:-_:_::::-::i:--i:I:-_:_-::-__::-:-_:_:_::-::-:_-_:__::::_-_:=:_:-::::--i-:-_:

t#h{to:ag:htdhEr¥£¥::i::n:at]:yfur:;fsdop.{rneg¥:;n#::a:ro¥:i,#:i::,::
Grandberry,  Texas,  where we are  now.' " (6)
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-sudden 5iidTriTspicioug` vagueness  comes  over ELEE"confession"  after  the  Garrett  place  is  left.    That  is  to
say,  as  soon  as  the  narrative  leaves  the  proved  and  ac-
cepted   state   of   facts,   details,   dates,   places,   names  are

;:ii:in;tt:i::i:a;¥§iis:¥i:;lit:i§j;r§¥:;e§:s:::i;e;iy§g::§g::i;a;:¥§:
i:::agfa:!satab*s:.heH:iaecnt,Sa%b;iuvtenB£°n°#s

cease,  the  al-"confession."
are   not   even   coherent.     For   here   surely   was   Booth's
great  story-the  assassin   of  Lincoln  roaming:  un'<nown

a:gin:Fi:e::8:iz%gv:E::ngb:rned::°3|:.t?W8°a¥:gtpe°n°tdh::
scribes   later   discussion   he   had   with   St.   Helen   with
referer}ce  to   some  of  the  details  of  the  "confession."

In   his   "confession,"   St.   Helen  in   one  place   claims:
" `For  instance,  I  knew  nothing  of  the  plan  to  take th=`

;::g;nht;;;ites:ep:je¥E:g#:at::p¥r:i:'::n:i;:iefeei`:its:;ifes:p:i]aii;b:,§[`;i¥,;
Reference  to  the  confessions   of  Atzerodt

\irho  was   supposed  to  kill  iindr.e``;  Johnson,
and  Pa,yne3   the  man  `'Jho  attempted  the
a.ssassination  of  Secretary  Sewa.rd,   clearly
shov~7s  that  Booth  did  know  of  Payne's  plans
for  Seward's  assassination.     .

Mr.  Bates  asked:    " `Did  not  the  government  of  the
United  States  announce  to  the  American  people,  and  as
for  that  matter,  to  the  civilized  world,   that  Booth  was

Efo][eydo:nsda;hj:?seaathfa°cft:£::£dBe::thL£#a°s[nn:tveknifi:ti?aTtE:

goa::efa:a;nas£Eiixirgftnia:G[atrr]:Sttahopmhg.S{C[a£[nfoatctB::ta£
who  was  this  man?' "

tha:`Sat.m¥:]ewnasrekpiifi:€£tyt£:y€gir:£Sbgr°n?ahnadvewi?a:rue
positive  or  direct  proof  as  to  who  this  man  was,  yet
i rom  the  circumstances  I  would  say  that  it was  Ruddy,
the  man  with  whom  I  had  negotiated  for  my  personal

i:'£He:::icde,'::8#tercyn;::dtehr:tte°ioTd¥e::.C°m¥Po]iceirpia¥iE

gu;e:%egr,er[w£;c{£th€eisnpa¥off#s:b:t#tk6a€#:#:edf::d?aa~:gt3!=.3::r
-ul

i:|8°hta#eye]xe:i::£:dpftc:u;:Sj,eatsc£:erwa;s°#3:::Bethweam8°tn6

I::inie:d:tt;t;h#t:r|:|tf:ttdaEFo;em|:Gha:=n:ff::o::ot:di::::oi:eat,:¥:he;:a!:€oa;:er::t:t

:t:¥efr:a:fsterr:r;epas;::;tgs:odmR::P:Pea:h:a:n:nt]:S:!ed¥e:rt':S:°h::i:a:r±:t:

a;UER:;yd#atrh:Cap:|u:r:1#gf°o¥ne:joxlFye:#:¥asi::::dtuh:e:yt*::;£'o£;I

gute:e:stbhei;igdi:nn:,;;#ia:s`;ctt:uenrei#oofE?in;:f:if.;gi;,filndpi:-;a:
(Compare  t}i6se  statemen-ts   in  3t.   IIelen's
confession  i.T,'ith  those  in  the  Chapter
"At  rhe  Garrett  |Farm")  _ ___ __ _ _ _

s on April 23.
L7)

The  man  who  .was  shot  in  the  barn  was  killed -on  the

§ee§;:;:js§oi££']::!i:i]et:`§;:io¥:a:#:;:ht:at:he|hi§se::a;:i:;ug::=;s§ijv§e§:n:i::;i
gficri:taiic°oTPwa£;chanwderteh;oi:£a:%':¢h8j:afnr°wmhohisasu:hd:tr;
jhad  tiere  was  also  the  matter  of  the

Ei`:::  Nt,£±:ia::u::.:/;3.;et:::;:d  on  his
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''But  in  this  cormection;I  Bates  reports  5t.   Helen  as  saying   (8),     "I

desire  to  say,   so  that  my  co~flscience   shall  be  clear  and  confession  complete,   that

I  inave  no  cause  to  complain  of  the  treatment  that  I  have  received  at  the  hands

of  the  Federal  soldiers  or  of ficers  in  pursuit  of  me  before  and  after  the  killing

of  President  liincoln,   f or.  they  were  more  than  once  in  plain  aLnd  broad  view  of

me.     It  is  a  little  renal.ka`01e,   don't  you  thin!c,   that  it  was  possible  for  me  to

remain  within  the  Federal  lines  for  seven  or  more  entire  days  and  nights,   within

forty  miles  of  ,|,'=ashington  City,   in  a  country  entirely  oi}en  and  \.jithin  the  terri-

tory  completely  occupied  by  the  Federal  troops,  while  I  waited  f or  Ruddy  to  go

within  the  Confederate  lines  and  arrange  to  halve  Confederate  soldier.s  meet  us  at

the  Rappaharmc>ck giver,   as  the  safest  and  most   certain  means   of  my  escape?"     (9)

IJr.   Bates   sho-I-7s   how  very  inconsistent   he\'\or  is  it  St.  Helen3'c\an be

by  saying  later  in  his  book  (10); "Realizing  tlrat  he  was  hunted  Trith  a  zeal  beyond

the  zeal  prompting  the  searcher.s  in  f ollowing  the  ordinary  criminal  and  bringing

hii`!i  to  justice;   stimulated  by  a  burni.fig  desire  fort  vengeance  f or  the  crime  that

startled  the  whole  world,   no  less  than the  hope  of  the  rna.gnific3eut  reward,  \,7hich

meg.nt  a  f ortune   in  those  days,   John Tt7ilkes  Booth  decided  to  cast   his  lot  among

the   Indians."     and  John  i,-i''ilkes  Booth  said  in  his  o\im  diary,   mv.i7et,   cold  and

st&rving,   igf7ith  every  man's  hand  against  me,   I  am  her'e  in  despair.--tonight   I  try

to  escape  these  blood-hounds  once  more."     (11)

hir.   Bates  claims  that  he  located  a  "large  family  of  people  by  the  narie

of  Ruddy  living  `ur,Tithin  the  immediate  neighborhood  of  5anuel  Cox."     (12)

The  author,  pursuing  the  investigation  in  i5outhern  linryland,   had  the

f ollowing  statement   from  A.=`J,`F.   Neale,   a  soldier  of  the  Confederafy  and  an  old

resident  of  I-a  Plataj   about  five  miles  from  the  di  Cox  home:

ox  wa.s  a  strong  and  dominant

g:oaond;iiutwEicwh°E[edi]Pv°etd.SayT£:::*eerreu`£€ntyhem::£g£:bt°£:

ie:gihb]°ornhe:°£nadsitrra°nnkg]£:nfodb°e?i:aeiiasThoeinJo:]ess°#an€¥

:i:;;¥{:a;;;u;§tj;%r::n:ec:v::t,;nE¥{ga:#.;1:a:;a:a::[c;eff:§T£;§d:#j
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i5ZT¥*=iilwTirtfr3tatejfieffi©fyF_.(L3)"I  am  82  years  old  and  have  lived  in  this  neighbor-

::::ipA::]j:::¥:tiji!e:e:i:i¥rjlmoa¥;:!i!:8;-i,:C!!;;::::;d:e;::in:;;:I
g:::e,°fcoTxh°omfascoAx.,sJ8i::ion,[a:%ewFr:i#i'in`Cfi]o°bnee;:(
----:----i:-----_----_-----_---::------_--::::_---_

i;::v:i::,%a:i:e:i:::i:aeiiasos;iaarii;e::tiEt:;s!to:¥£::eEnr;.vs:ir#:i;f'i;i:;:;:``Franklin   Robey  was   Colonel   Cox's   overseer.     He

#gai%:siqyufaertosu°sretd.°fHmeanwa¥£8Ldonj:££:yMmei£:d?snt]ebs;::=

;=::;i;h£#:snEL¥e#g¥£¥:OneF:;ife
;:fm!o¥|:g¥ni#?Sif=ofdeS¥;f:-:,#:re:t:o:dth;:erfi
am  sure no one by  the name of  Ruddy ever lived around
Cox's  station.

aL¥ifiaga£;gi§§:§#|ed:ffrciETjohi:di°5#i±%s:yo¥t

=;a:in:sffe:t:Eit!nne:§:#:rm¥:d¥:hirfu
back  end  of  the tent, and  he and  Mattingly  didn't try to
sell any  more of  the books.

ig:IBA;Jo:t;ej;#:b?e:::i:::£!i3.iii:d#o.e:x:i,|g:ad;a?:iat;:a;0::e£:;ii
Federal Army  or his  desire to  have  the  reward.'

=ej:oJo°t#o?i.:a:i,a¥c:rso!;d;s:iiottgtaf:|£,u?:a:daad{iva:nn:tfh:es:w:a:¥i§

::rf.fE:nhgeGm:;i`:V::bs::::i::iti:as:t!F.o:n:ykTifh!rf!;,%d?reEdeNra::oji

;;:e{:iy:;¥t!:§jr;iieai:e;d:::RM¥}t:!aifu;;'faoFX;afu:;i¥th:a:d;I::t:ii§
cuss-w-or-d,   SDal!det,   daLHdet. "     But
lj`ir.   Garner  could  not  say  what  it
mea.nt.

7oriJ3-
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Maryland  directory  of  1878,  a  copy  of  which  is

inratfa£:°A:r£Sosj:;a;sLfb;::#erwnaesahr;n£:°¥ia%,:.ht8iv:S
four or five miles from Cox's station. The name "Ruddy"
C.°ufdronft tbhee I::,Pdden£:e t::6diri:tc:3r%.ne  must  decide  that

whoever was shot at the  Garrett barn, it was not  Frank-lin Robey or "Ruddy."                                 __.._(
_i87icacn°drdi:tgert%et¥i:tdesinhfu:emfshfs:aEt:Pes§Se°eTetiBefi:
as   can   be   determined   from   statemerlts   of   Granbury
people,  St.  Helen  left  about  1875  or  1876  for  parts  un-
known.

view  of  the  statements  made by  St.  Helen."

::i::-1=_:i:::::_I::_-:_-:_-:_-::--_-:-:----:_---=-i::::-:-_::I-i:I::::--:--i:=-:I::::--:i:

Judge  a.1,:.   Estes,  of  Granbu.ry,   who   knew  bothSt.   Helen  and  Bates,

said  to  the  author  in  January,1921;     "As  I  remember  5t.   Helen,   he  was   just  the

type  of  man  that  \r;ould  tell  a  "kid"  like  Bates  such  a  darn-f ool  yarn  if  it

wasn't  true,  but  nevet#  if  it  was.     I  do  not  believe  that  St.   Helen  ever  made

such  a  confession  to  Bates   ser.iously.     He  might  have  told  him  some   such  a

story  as  a  reason  f or  not;  wanting  to  tell  the  true  Story,   knowing  that  if

BatgT_:r=Ln:i:`::f::_:.:::,:.nfe`_:_':::dt,`:::i:L:_V::.¥mfr?_=::h+ti=_f,:_'tr:p,:f¥¥_:f.Z-`fe.Bate}§£;_::`Lt{:L`d *F:.:~0  :::i ::a::}Lb`dr:::`e rha:S§}.nftdrqu*ri._   [4 8enp{*pr/£try r"{!/i a

Tde'drles,himself,acknoii-rledgedthathedid,nottakethe"Confession"

.:..i.i-i-6``

serif:+1yfi
L!: •.7

adderm±ned_do_dn®pL±he_ _sghiee±± 1ifee

*Feueome--treating  it  as  a  nyth  unf ounded  in  fact--a  story that  existed  only

in  the  mind  of  St.   Helen,   a  comparatively  demented  man,   a  crank,   who  gloried

in  deceiving  me  to  the  idea."

"Then,"   stated  Bates   (16),   ''1  would  think  he  could  have  been  equa.lly

as  wel].  Joha  5t.   Helen,   John  Smith  or   John  Brown,   or  any  other  man,   who  load

committed  some  crime  other  than  tl.,at  of  the  a.ssassination  of  President  Lincoln,

for  the   commission  of  which  he  T,rould  have  been  equ8.lly  as  anxious  to  avoid

•:?
•:i;|

``t:`

T
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detection  under  a.ny  other  name,   or  for  any  other  crime,   if  such  erin.ie  had  any

connection  I,rith  violation  of  the  Federal4 ;/.     In  other  \'rords,   he  could  a.s  v`/ell

have  been  a  mail  robber  as  the  assassin  of  a  President. s# that  I  could  place

but  little  ixportance  in  these  statements  and  circumstances  as  a  pr.oof  that

St.   Helen  was  in  fact  John  `'L-/'ilkes  Booth,   but'  rather  thought  of  his  confession

as  am  evidence  of  an  identity  not  yet  spoken  of."

As  a  matter  of  f&ct  it  would  be  rather  clever  f or  a  criminal  to

confess  that  he  was  soiiie  other  criminal  who  was  dead,   f or  if  he  then  ever  faces

the  confession,   he  could  easily  prove  that  it  `F/as  false.

Why  didn't  mr.   Bates  get  some  corrobor8.tive  statemerits  fr.om  Granbur.y

people  with  reference  to  St.   Helen's  description  and  actions  while  a  resident

there!     This  iFfould  have  been  so  easy  and  valuable  as  part  of  his  alleged

"ey.haustive  and  painstaking  investigation. "

Among  other  articles,did  Bates  read  the  stol.y  of  Chris  Ritter3    It

was  published  in  the  Chicago Chronicle January  31,   1897, a,nd  in  numerous  other

papers,   eleven  months  before  that  of  Darn  and  more  than  ten  years  before  Bates

br.ought  out  his  own  book.    'il;hile  both  the  Bates'  book  and  the  Bitter  story  are

about  as  far  fr.om  the  truth  a,s  one  could  imagine,   yet  they  agree  in  many  of

their  false  details,  as  a  comparison  i`-rill  show.       The  Ritter  story,\'7hich  is

reprinted  in  our  Chapter  15,   suggests  ''the  lost  papers"   falsehood,   and  the

substitution  in  the  barn  of  another  ca,frying  these  bapersjonly  Ritter  has  Booth

and  "Fox"  instead  of  Bates'   "Ruddy"  change  identitie.s.     This  Ritter.  story  was

called  to  Bates'  attention  in  a  letter  from  an  actor,  rij-alter  Hubbelljon  June

17th,   1907,   a.nd  this  was  bef ore  the  publication  of  the  Bates  book.     Hubbell

also  speaks  of  "Ruddy;`'itj  an  overseer  at  Garrett's  farm.     Is  this  a.1so  the  source

of  the   `'ftuddv''   legend?

RI
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JOIN   ST.    IHI-Ei\T   AS   JOHN   -..qLKES   BOOTH.

Note a ,

The  pages   following  this  note  conta.ir} as  an  appendix  to  ChEipter  16,

the  section  f ron  the  Hood  County  #istory  dealing  .ffith  St.   Helen  and  the

s\'7orn   statements   of      D.L.   I{utt,   George   I.,i.   t,..j'-I.ight,   tl..;.',./.    Snyder,   ,i.\-`j'.

Crockett,   "Captain"   J.H.   Doyle,   Frank  Gaston  and  A.P.   Gordon,   and  others  who
Tj.ere  in  business  in  Granbury  during  the  time  St.   Helen  was. thor.e.     `,

The   following   is   &n  excerpt  #¢rn"A  HISTORY   0F  HOOD  COUNTY,

published  by  Thos.   T.   Ewell  in  1895,   (/age  91);
''C,a.   Alexander  was  a  man  of  intelligence  and  pr.ominence  in  this

locaLlity.     He  lived  on  Squaw  Creek  and  about  Barnard'§  mill,   and  was  a

surveyor.     During  the  war  had  been  County  Judge  of  Johnson.     A  daughter  of

his  was  the  wife   of  James  .„`ray,   a  prorinent  man  in  early  times  of  Squa\'7

Creek,   and  \E/ho  haLs  several  children  yet   living  in  this  vicinity.     Li.,''ray  was

a  brave  and  brawny  man,  but  quiet  and  peaceably  disposed;  and  it  is  related

that  during  the  turbulend  times,  two  men  at  enmity  \.rith  hil# conspired  to

make  way  \7ith  him.     One  of  these,   St.   Helenj>by  name,   had  a  serious  impediment           I

in  his  speech,   caused  from  asthaa,   so  he  could  rarely  speak  above  a  whisper'.

They  cLgr'eed  to  get  .,-/ray  into  a  house,   extinguish  the  lights  and  ,3t.   Helen

was  to  immediately  knock  t.-,.'ray  down  and  his  confederate  then  to   fall  upon

him  and  cut  his  throat;  but  when  Jt.   Helen  made  at  his  victim,  the  latter

anticipating  hin,   reversed  the  plan  by  felling  St.   Helen,  who  in  th6  da.r.kness

was  immedi.ately  f aLllen  upon  by  his  fello`-/  conspirator  \17ith  knife  applied  to

his  throat  and  would  have  soon  been  dispatched,   but  the  exigency  of  the

situation  caused  the  unfortunate  jt.   Helen,   for  the  mol,lent,  to  gain  the  use
in

of  his  voc€il  cords  and  loudly  announce  his  identity.
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D.   L.   (Lee)   Mutt.

At  the  time  St.  Helen  was  in  Gr.anbury,  aLbout  1871-75.   I  wag  in  the

grocery  and  liquor  firm  of  J.   F.   erld  J.   Nutt  Brotherg,  and  alwey9  conside.red

nyself  ag  a  pretty  good  friend  of  "SaintS'

He  had  Something  wrong  with the  inside  of;his  throat  which  made

him hoarge  and  wheezy.           He  Beened  to  be  a  little   stoop-Shouldered  and

turned  r!is  head  as  though  he  had  a  stif f  neck.           He  carried  a  cane

but  not  very  often  and  I  never  noticed  him  limp.

St.   Helen  could  draw  beautiful  pictur.eB  of  birds  and  animals.

never  Ba,w  him  draw  aLnything  else.          rid  no  time  did  he  ever  have  more  money

that  h©  could  have  made  in  the  bugineBs,  thgit  I  ever  knew  of.         He  could

have  easily  saved  at  least  a thousand  dollars  a year  in his  business  if  he

had  beez`  of  the  saving  type.            H6  was  par.ticularly  a  good  friend  of  Jno.

Reed,  who  -made  most  of   his  uving  by  gambliflg.            st.   Helefl  was  a  man  of

fine  brain.           It  was  talked  around  that  he  drew  up  a  paper  which  helped

Reed  beat  an  old  unn  by  the  name  of  'i\/ard  out   of  his  farm.         I  remember  A.   S.

Mc  Canaat   (uow  dead)  was  the  County   Clerk  a+.  the  time  and  did  not  like  St.

Helen,  vth®   8aid  he  VA8  a  crook,   and  i„c.   Canant  would  tell  of  the  Ward  deal  with

which  he  was  familiar.           I've  heard  ijic  Canerlt  say  many  tines: "St.   Helen  and  Reed

are  rascals."         The  C`ourt  House  burned  ia  the ¢pring  of  1875  and  the  story  was

that  Reed   set  it  on  fire  because  he  had  been  indicted  for  some  crookednes8  and

wished  to  destroy  the  evidence.         As  I  remember,  Reed  ira8  tried  for  some  kind

of  an  of f en9e  but  beat  the  case  and  got  of f  in  Some  way.           I  do  not  remember

whether  it  was  f or  the  of f ense  of  arson  or  not.

St.   Helen  drank  a  lot  and  `nras  {iwfully  dr'unk  severgil  times  and  could

hardly  get  around.         He  and  Bill  I,io.  Dormld  were  close  friends,   in  fact, .I  think

it  wag  Mc    Donald  who  brought  St.  Helen  to qranbury  izi  the  first  place.

-dr-al     _ __________ .__Lfl .
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Met  I)onald  w&8  a  drinking  and  fighting  man  who  got  dr'unk  f r`eapntly  and

wag  quite  handy  with  the  kiulfe  and  cut  Jno.   Green  up  pretty  badly.

St:  Helen  once  started  a  fight  in  uy  place  of  bugines9  with  a  half-

breed  Indian  by  the  name  of  Selvidge.         St.   Helen  came  in  half  dmnk  and  in  a

violent  and  vicious  mood.             Just  how  the  ficht  started,  I  do  not  know,  but

the  first  thing  I  saw  was  Selvidge  on  the  floor  with  ''Sairit"  on  top  of  him.

Bill M#  I)onald  was  in  the  saloon  and  ran  up with  a  kidfe  to  aid  St.   Helen.

I  grabbed  Bill  and  pushed  him  ou"h#the  front  door.            \Jhen  I  turned  I

snyvst.   Helen  going  out  the  back  door  and  found  Selvid8e  back  of  the  counter  with  a

bloody  kriife.            He  had  out  St.   Helen  across  the  biLck  of  the neck.   opening  the

muscles,  which  left  a  bad  8car.

The  nearest  St.   Helen  and  I  came  to  having  trouble  w&8  over  old  rfan

Taylor,  an..old  Confederate  Soldier,  who  hulig  around  ,5t.   Helen'9  place  and  mine.

He  veg  ",dimple-minded"  arid  cranky.            St.   Helen  didn`t  like  old  ti`aylor  arid  not

only  ordered  him  to  keep  out  of  hig  saloon,  but  algo  out  of  town.           Just  for

what  particular  reason  I  do  not  know.              ri`aLylor  came  over  to  ny  place  and

St.   Helen  follow:/ed  him  e`nd  tried  to  inn  him  Out.            I  ordered  St.  Helea  to  leave

the  old  man  along,  which he  resented  and  patted  his  pistol  pocke+ at  me  threat-

ningly  but  lef t  without  starting  tl.ouble.

I  have  some  recollection  that  St.   Helen  was  sick  at  one  time  in  some

room  upstairs.           /im  sure  ±t  was  not  in  the  back  of  the  8&loon  and  I  believe

some  of  .the  men  sat  up  with  him  and  ny  beet  recollection was,  that  he  was  pretty

sick.

I  do  not  think  he  Sold  his  place  of  bugine8s  to  anyone.  but  merely

Sold  his  Stock  out  and  left.            He  didn`t  even  say  "Good  Bye."

I  remember  Bates  and  the  only  legal  bu8ines8  I  knov/  of   hit  attending

to   for  St.   Helen,  was  for  Some  orir,.inal  of fense  which  \F/a8  tried  down  about

'ftyler,  in  East  Texas.              Colonel    Oooper  inra8  an  attorney  hero  ait  the  tiiuet I



and  was  a  particular  friend  of  5t.   Helen's  and  they were  together  a ,great

deal®

I  have  nothing  against  Bates  and  always  I.egarded  him  tis  an  honest,

upright  citizen.

|S.Im D.L.   iurTT®

Sworn  to  and  subscribed  before  me  this  the  23rd  day  o1-   July,   1921,

by  the   seiid  D.L.   Mutt.

(slGNr:,I))
R-E.    E'STES.

Notary  Public  }iood  County,   Texas.

D®L.   Mutt   car`iie  to  Hood  County  \'7ith  his  brother  and  father  in  1859.

"These  Mutt  brothers;'  the  County  history  states,"  have  figured  very  largely

in  the  af fair.s  of  Hood  County,   especia.1ly  anterior.  and  during  the  period  of

organization® "

Several  pages  `21-25  of  the  history  are  devoted  to  the  brothers

and  father,   `\#ho,it  claims,   by  reason  of  their.  situation  and  close  connection

v;ith  of ficials  and  public  af fairs  and  the  natur.al  kindness  of  their  dispo-

sitions,   at  all  i;imes  exerted  a  wholesome  influence."

` -,,, i                    .                                                    `` -``;:i.-`   -



George  RA.   Wright.

I  know  St.   Helen  quite  well  vrnile  he  i`-7&s  her.e  in  (jranbury.            He  had

a  large  8Q8r  on  the  right   Side  of  his  throat  which  was  quite  prominent  €md

easily  seen.            He  wheezecl  coriti]#usly,  which  I  allmays  thoucht  was  due  to  his

cut  throat.         This  wheezirls  was  especially  noticeable  when  he  got  ci  little

excited.

St.   Helezt.  v/&s  about  forty  or  forty-five  years  olcl  at  the  time  he  was

here.          i[-IThile  I  remember  him.  quoting  poetry,   I  do  not   remenber  of  him  ever

making  any   fine  speeches.            This  would  have  been  impossible  anyway  on  8ccou»t

of  his  throat.

.LaE8!±:EEL..€Ljft.v.in.£gE¥&..............

1`

-

````

Swor.n  to  and  subscribed.   before  me  by  the  said  Geo.   i.tl.   \'L,Jright   on
this  the  l8th  day  of  July,  1921.

..LS.I.9iF±DJ...h.0.Y..I..ES|F{¥i....................
Notary   Public  Hood   County,   Tex&8.

LH
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I,   Tv7.W.Snyder,   I.enember  +erg  clearly  circunstaflces  attendin¢`' my  indFtment

|;      by  the  Federal  Court  at  Tylep,   Te3[as.   in  1871,   for  selling  w!-iiskegr  at  G].earose  H,iTills

without  a  license.    The  selling was  acti,i.ally  done  by man  of  the  name  JOLm  St.  Helen  to

wiion  I  had  sold my place  .I.'?  business.    A  young  attorney  by  the  mme  of  Finis  Bates

represez-iced  St.  Helen.    Bates  cGrme  to  me  and  said  .St.  Iiel©n  did  not  vent  to  appear  in

octurt,  and  that  it  wc"1d  be  necessary  for  me  to  appear.    '`,./'e  went  to  Tyler  in  a  bugngy,   I

taking  $500fqo\of  ny  ovm  money  witb  me.     Bates  vv7ent   to  th.e  court,  made  acme  ar{2angement

with  the  Judge,   Came  ba"c  and  told me  that   the  expenses  and  Cost  would  1]e  i-$80at,  which

amount  I  gave  him,  and  for  which  I  was  never  reimbursed  by  either  Bates  or  St.  I.1.elen.

`    I  never  lmew  St.  iielen  i;o  have  any  large  amounts  of  money.   as   I  remember  he  ccnild  not  have

paid more  than  i-}150.00  for  my  business.

1ia tnes s ed

(Miss)   I)8inty  Gui].1iams,   Secret`..-try
D-  J  Dewees

IE,I

1`--

L-i-i=lLi.-tr+_

Signed  at  Oonfederate  EJ.cme,   Austin.   Teams.
Jarmary  20.   1921.

W  W  Snyder
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A.  W.   Crockett

'

I  «ras  working  in  a  print-shop  in  Granbury  when  St.   Helezl  ran  his  saloon

here.         St.   Helen  carried  a  small  ad  in  the  local  paper  for  his  saloon,the  "Black

ELwk;I   for  wines,  1iquors,  and  cigars  and  must  have  made  quite  a  little  money  in

his  business/ &8  Granbun/  was  he6dqu&rter8   for  the  Cowhoye  of  V!'eet  Texas  then.

St.   Helen  claimed  to  be  a  Southern  man.          I  do  not  remember  him  ever

being  sick  at  Granbury,  and  never  heard  about  him  having  any  Special  amount  of

money,  at  least,  not  more  than  he  could  make  in  his  business.       If  he  had  re-

ceived  r'emittances  froB  some  outside   source  througit  the  rT'ost  Office.  it  v.Jould

eventually  have  become   haown. I

St.   Helen  v/a,a  a  jolly  fellow  in  his  saloon  and  was  well  liked  by  the

Cowboys.

I  remember.  F`inis  Bates,  a  young  attorney  who  left   Granbury  about  1874,

going  to  I,f:1s818Blppl.               Ver.y  few  people  in  Granbury,  who   knew  both,  believe

that   St.   Helen v,.as  John lfilkes  Booth,   even  after  Bates'   book  came  out.

(-§!gl-qpl---a.-lv`-§BQ§-xpg|`.------------o

Sworn  to  and   subscribed  befo re  me  by   the   said  +„  W.   Crockett  on
this  the  18th  day  of  July,1921  €md  I  certify  that  all  err.sures  f`nd  interlin
eations  were  made  before  Signing.

(jzE£±EiEfl=_RLP=¥=±kjRE=__=___-===_

Notary   fublic  Hood  County.  Texas.

History  I-lood  County, ../ .48  and  129,   1872,   A.`'¥7.   Crockett,   a  grandson  of

Davy  Crockei;t,   entered  "Vidette"  office  as  an  apprentice.
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Copt.   J.   H.   Doyle.

I  was  in  the  Herchandige  business  in  i<ranl)ury  in  the  seventies  Eand  knew

St.   Helen  quite  well,  but  ny  memory  is  not  as  good  back  to  that  time  &s  would  be

that   of  f+`L.   P.   Gordon'8  or  Lee  Nutt`s,   both  of  whom  knew  St.   Helen  much  better  than

I  did.

I  remember  that  St.   Helen  had  had  his  neck  cut,  and  talked  with  a  wheeze,

and  turned  his  head  as  though  he  had  a  slight  stiff  nee-Jc.

He  was  in  a  fight  once  at  ltL}utt`8  place  \'Jith  a   fellov.I  by   the  mme  of

Seividge,  who  cut  him  across  the  back  of   the  neck.

I  think  St.  Helen  was   sick  enough  &t  one  time  to  have  a  doctor,   but  do

not  r enember  any  of  the  details.

His  PlgLce   of  business  vy'a8  little  more  than  a   shack.            }`,'1ost   of  then

her.e  were  8t  that  tine.          I  never  knenr  or  heard  of  St.   Helen  having nlore  than  an

ordinary  amount  of  money.

He  left  here  in  1873.  or  1874  `=`s  well  as  I   can  remember.

(SIGNED)          J.   H.   I)OYLF.

Sworn  to  andsubscribed   I)efore  me  by  the  said  J.   H.   I)oyle  ofl  this  the
lath  day  of  July,1921  and  I  certify  thfat  all  erasures  end  interlineations  were
made  before   signing.

_      (slGi`{ro)       Roy  E.  E_s_I.E_S__._
Notary   fublic  Hood  County,   Texas  .

AThe   History  of  IIood  County,"f.123-4-,  j;Aates  that   J.H.   Doyle   cane  to

that ¢unty "in  about   1870"and  entered  the  merchantile  business..

E±
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Frank  Gaston.           `

I  `nra8  in  Gr&nbur}r  during  the  time  St.   !Ielen  was  here.       I  was  in  his

saloon  Several  times,   and  once  or  twice  I  was  also  in  his  place  €i.t  Glen  Hose.

There  were  oily  a.  couple  cabins  cind  a  rfull  there  then.

St.   Helen  was  a  typical   saloon  desperado  and  very  keen.           He  had  a

quick  eye  and   sometirries  his  eyes  v7ere  r.ather  wild   looking.            1`Io   one  around

here  at  that  time  thought  5t.  Helen  so   Strange  and  dif f erent,   fat  of  course  many,

after  they  heard  that  he  rfucht  be  John Wilkes  Booth/thought  him  quite  different.

I'ifter this  period  I  was  connected  with  newspapers  in  some  of  the  larger  cities  and

sew  Fdwin  Boo¢h  and  ni&ny  other  actors,   alid  I  do  not  thin*  St.   Helen  ever  acted

much  like  one.

I   caLme  back  here   in  1887   and  became  editor  of  the   Granburyj:§e±£{p.          Later

I  helped  }thjor  Thog.   T.   Ewell  v.rite  the  local  County  history  in  1895.         Blajor  Ewell

`t.r&s  one  of   our  first  att`or.ney8,   having  been  admitted  to  the  Ear  in  Granbury   in  1871,

and  knew  St.   Helen.            I  mentioned  St.   Helen  for  a   sketch  but  the  A-.&jor  caid  "No.

He  was  only  a.   cheap  desper.ado.          '`,a/e  won't  put  him  in."            He  vas  mentioned  on  page

90  in  cormection  with  the  &ttenpted  murder  of  another  of  ou r citizens.

( SIGNED)             FRAI{K   GASTO]\i.

Sworn  to  and  subscribed  bef ore  me  by  the   saifl  Frank  Gaston  on  this  the
lath  day  of  July.1921.

(sl±_R_0_y_FLE_a_IFiin
Notary  Public  Hood  County.  Texas.

•==*_._:i_-______-_______________:iisEis
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sTATmi!ENT   OF   A.    p.   GORDON.

GRANBITRY ,    TEXAS.

I  entered  the  grocery  and  Saloon  business  in  G.ranbury  in  1871  and  soon

after  employed  13`ichard  St.   Helen  for   chout  a  year,   after  which  time  he  left `rLue  and

8t&rted  the  "Black  ffawk"   saloon.              St.   Helen  was  tall  and  slim.           He  must  have

been  i-iltout   six  f eet  tall,   and  v.Jeigfoed  about  loo  pounds.          He  was   of  dgLrk  complexion,

„   something  like  a  Fre%h  Creole,  had  small7cl8rk,piercing  eyes,   a  rather  pointed  chin,

and  a  ver.y  noticeable  scar  on  the  right  side  of  I?tis  throat  where  it  looked  as  though

he  had  had  his  throat  cut.         It  dial.i't  look  like  it  had  been  done  in  &n  operation

but  in  a  ficht.         He  also  had  a  Bc&r  on  his  breast.

',fifhile  he  was  in  Granbury,  he  was  cut   across  the  back of  the  neck  in  a

fight  and  carried  another  scar  as  the  I`esult  of  this.         One  could  hear  St.   Helei3.

breathe  for  quite  a  distance,   and  this  was  v7orse  tthen  he  became  excited.            I  do

nor  remethber  ever  seeing  him  limp  or  complain  of  being  crippled.

I  think  that  I  knew  St.   Helen  &s  well,  or  better,  than  anyone  else  in
;

Granbury.            inrinti\the  time  he  v7orked  for  me  I   could  not   complalnof  his  work.          He

was  a   good  v.Jorker.             He  claimed  `he  was  a   Southerner,   gmd  once  sciid  he  was  from

Termessee.            i?e  did  not  have  the  cLppe&r&rlce  of  having  been  in  this  pgirt  of  the

country  long  when  he  cameto   i`r;nbury.            \„hen  he  vras  at  Glen  Rose,   he  took  hiB

meals  at  ii.   8.   Ivlcclanahen's,who  were  fr.om  f{ashville,   Term.,   and   `]t.   Hel6n   said  that

he  was  f ron  the   same   state.          St.   Helen  T7€is  a  firLe  tJermE4n  arld  prided  himself  on

his  permranship.            :ie  could  draw  pictures  of  birds,   eagles,   horses,   cind  men  `';ith  the

pen,   drawing  his  men   so  well  that  one  would  reco€pize  them.         His  signature  was  verty-

neat   and  he  rade  f ine  scrolls  when  Signing  his  name.          St.  Helen  was  a  dangerous

man  when  drunk.          He  was  considered  `ca+  very  wicked  iiian  and  al`f,.ays  v/ent  around  with  a

pistol  and  knife.            He  could  pull  a.  pistol   quicker  than  any  other  man  I   knew.

Once  I  remember,   he  v/as  drinking  and  quarrelling  and.  about  to  get   into  a  figrlt.



I  talked  him\  out  of  it.           He  then  Said,  ''1  don't  virant  to  have  azly  nope  trouble

with  anybody;    ny  hands  are  all  dyed  with  blood."         He  always  seemed  to  be

dreading  something  and  several  times  while  dr.unk  claimed  that  he  had  blood  on

his  hands.           This  didn`t  mean  anything  here  at  that  tilno,  as  lots  of  the  men had

been  mixed  up  in  shooting  affeLirs.           He  was  alihnys  neatly  dregseu  but  not

u"sually  so.           He  was  very  keen  and  could  get  up  any  kind  of  document  he

wanted.         He  wrote  up  8ome  papers  that  helped  a  friend  of  his;   John Reed.  a

gambler,   beat  an  old  man  ty  the  name  of  -`„fard  out  of  a  farm  about  three  mileg

from  Gr&nbury.       St.   Helen wrote  the  claim  or  patent  f or  Reed  in  his  own  hand.

St.   Helen,  during  the  time  I  know  him  -all  the  time  he  was  in Granbury,

did  not  have  a  noticeable  amount  of  money.         It  would  have  been  po88ible  for  him

to  make  quite  a  little  moriey  in  his  saloon  business.  but  whatever  mcEiey  he  made

he  got  rid  of  about  as  fast  as  he  made  it.         He  left  the  women  entirely  alone.

Kept  away  from  public  meetings  and  crowds,  and  never  to  ny   knowledge  took  part

in  any  plays  or  eatertainmerlts.       He  was  not  iatere8ted  in  politics  and  never

got  dramtic  unless  warmed  up  with  whiskey.          He  vy&B  inclined  t®  quote  poetry

both  when  sober  and  drunk.   but  I  never  sa:w  him  read  any  book  or  have  any  in  his

po88egBion.          In  speaking  of  him  or  to  him  all  v/ho  knew  him  called  him  ''Saizit''  or

_`\

EII

"s"eLefl He  vas  well  liked  by,  the  Cowboys  and  knew tow  to  handle  them.

St.   Helen  claimed  he  was  a  member  of  the  ida8oulc  Lodge,  of  which  I  am  a

menber,  but  never  Showed  himself  as  one.            He  talked   considerably  about  i..&8oae

and  either had  read  a  lot  about  them  or was  one.   .

St.   Helen  and  Lee  NItt,  who  was  also  in  a  saloon  and  grocery  here,  were

quite  friends.           John  For"alt  also  kne`rJ  St.   Helen  quite  well  and  was  in  his
-`   Saloon  a  lot.         I  do  not  remember  that   St.  Helen  and   TTnis  Bates were  ever  inti-

L';      mately  acquainted  and  do  not  think  it  could  have  been  possible.  due  to  their

dif ference  in  age  and  character.            33ate8  was  just  a  young  green  kid  and  st.  Helen

a  hardened  man  of  the  world  of  at  least  forty.           Bates  spent  the  greater  part  of

IKE_
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his  time  while  in Granbury  in  his. of fice  and  practised  very  little.

I  do  not  remember  that  St.  Helen was  ever  seriously  ill  here  in  Granbury,

and  I  am  sure  that  if  he  had  been  sick  enough  to  have  friends  in  to  care  f or  him.

that   I  would  have  kn6vm  and  remembel.ed  about  it.            jq`either  did  he  have  a  negro  or

hiexican  porter  in  his  Saloon.            As  to  the  cozife88ion  Bates  claims  St.   Helen  zBfide

to  him,  if  made  at  all,  it  "9t  have  been  told  Bates  &8  a  joke  just  to  r'stringw

him  along.       St.   Helen  did  not  room  here  a,t  Graribury  in  his  Saloon  at  right    unless

gambling  all  night,  which  he  often  did.         Occasionally  he  slept  outside  back  of

his  saloon  in  a  wagon  and  claimed  that   he  could  bz.eathe  the  bettei.  when  in  the  open.

He  never  mentionetd  the  a88assirmtion  of  iresident  IIincoln  in  ny  presence  or  discussed

any   of  the  people  coanected  with  it.         -„here  he  went  when  he  left  here,   I  do  not
`\\ know.         He   suddenly  left  about  1875  and  that  was  the  last  I  ever  ear  or  heard  of

-
(.slGiurD)               A.   p.   GORDoli.

Sworn  to  and  subscribed  before  me  by  the  said  ji.   P.   Cordon  this  the  20th.   day   of

August,   1921.

(slGjunD)      R.   E.   ESTEs.

Notary  fublic  Hood  County,   Texas.
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enors  as  we_ii  as `.``o

' oJJL!,`o
History  of  Granbury.   Hood  county,page  113:     tt.i.   P.  Cordon  came  to  Hood

EHr'-

county  in    1871,  and  li]ae  others  of  that  time,  engaged  in  school  teaching  till  ho

acquired  sufficient  means  to  enable  him  to  follow  the more  profitable  emplogrneHt

of merchandising;  his  first  experience  in which mag  damp groceries,   then  so rmch

more  in  dema,nd  than  other  Kinds  of  merchandise.    Cordon,  however,  by  close  eoonongr  ,,

art attention  to  btisiness,  soon began  to  grow  out  into  larger business  art  to  deal

in more  necessary articles  of merchandise,  till  he  diseontinned  liquors  entirely.

He  lijls ever  since  renained  steadily engaged  in merchandising,  and  so  prospered  as

to  be  among  the  foremost  of merchants  in  the  ccmaty.    He  has  not  held  Qf fice,  ex-

cept  as  school  superintendent  in  early  times.    He  possesses  a  Cool.  caloulatizig,

undisturbed  temperament,  i*thioh has  enabled him  to  tBffle  all  difficulties and face

all  dangers  and  adversities  presenting  themselves.  and i+nich would. have  overcome

most  other men  in  his  station.    lit  the  same  time  he  has  by  the  same  charaoteristie

of  temper maintained himself  in f riendly  relationship with his  fellows  in all  the

Conditions  through which our  society has  developed  from  the  ttirbid  times  in  our

history  to  the  present."     In  1872-3,   }\.{r.   Cordon  was   "School  Exalfiiner  and  Superintenderfe

for  the   Couuty®" ___J
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It  is  rather.  strange  too,   isn't  it,  tnt.`.t  i.:r.  Bates  spent  so  much

time  with  St.   Helen  and  that  the  many  other  friends  of  St.   Helen .did  not  kno\!/

of  this!         her.   Bates  told  the  author  on  February  8th  and  9th,   1921,  that  he

had  never  seen  St.   Helen  under  the  influence  of  liquor.     It  is  rather  odd  that

he  knew  him  so  well  and  still  could  say  that.     In  view  of  the  great  amount  of

testimony  to  the  contrary,  L..:r.  Bates'   statement  would  indicate  only  a  slight

acquaintanceship  \-+ith  St.   Helen.

Itr.   Ba.tes  said  in  his  book,   Page  Z9,   that  `„;hen  St.   Helen  became  ill

for  quite  a  period  he  "took  to  his  bed,   confined  in  the  -i)ack  room  of  his  store."

I;r.  Bates  stated  to  the  writer,in  1921,  that  he  had  no  knowledge  of

this  fight.

Did  Booth  and  Herald  use  passi:7ords  to  get  across  the  Navy  Yard  Bridge

(East  Potomac  River.  Bridge)i    Mr.   Bates  repeats  the  assertion  that:   (Page  lil)

"Booth and  Herold  '\?ere  permitted  to  pass  the  guards  \7ithout  arrest  by  simply

giving  the  pass  wor.d  "T.B."     or  "T.B.   Road;I  which uns  meaningless,   unless  under-

stood  by  the  guard  on  duty."     "T.B."   is  A  tour  on  "TLB®   Road;'     reached  from

TJashington  over  this  particular.  bridge,  and  would  not  be  meaning:less  to  anyone

falniliar  with that  particular  section.      As  actually  did  happen \'fith  Booth  and

Herald,   the   chances  that  someone  living  in  "T.B."   ol`  on  ''T.B.   Road"  would

explain  that  they  were  going  home  to  "T.B."  or.  out  on  `'T.B.   Road"  would  have

prevented  the  use  of  these  term.a  as  pass  words.
"I.a."

"Underground  rout

a  collection  of  two  or  three  houses  a.nd  stores  on  the

€i,,i,,\3Jashington  to  Richaond,   about  t\../eddy-tv7o  miles  southeast

o£.  'i7ashington.         This  was  to  be  the  first  place  to  be  made  for  with  Hr.  Lincoln
i,lF

after  abduction.     (four  Lincoln  Conspiracies;`  tyLgs]a±l]£][J`faLggz±E„  April,  1896.

by  Victor  Louis  lthson.    Also  r.efer  to  the  testimony  of  the  sergeant  in  charge  at

the  bridge,     Silas  T.   Cobb;   a.T.

This   `'Confessio
made   in   "1878+I,     }`ir.   Bate

i .  e/A±rtyh.)

:''{*`}oi£:.in:aE:SL3£:i::a:nh:hie¥:e:_:=b::yh::f:::kth:a:food
County  Court  riouse  burned.       Accor.ding  to  the  County  history,   this  occurred
l`,inrch   8,   1875.
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(4)           £=r.   Bates  devotes  several  i:ages   (84-89)   to  a  discussion  '.'±f  A`ndrew  Jo:rmson's

c}'.ifir&oter   ''i lew  of  tke  st=tements  made  tly  St.  EelenT  and  attemi.ts  to  support  the

'lconfession"  by  st.,,ting  (¢nge  88}   treat  M  In  this  cormection  I  have  sought  to  learn

sonetiii.r]g,   if  rjossible,   of  }i'£r.  Ijincoln'g  feelilng` towcp-rd  Vice-Presiderit  Johasono   but

find  only a  few  sentences  in written  history  toucliing  their  relatit:)ns.  it,-I+dch are  re-

corded  by  William  F.  Hemdon  art  Jesse  -\,I.  I,-.ie#k,   in  t3:I,eir  biograpEy  of  t±=e  life  of

I,incoln,   in  Volume  2,  at  page  232.   in  T7'hich I':rs.  LincoT.n  speaks  as  follows:

'n`fy  iLusbazid.  placed  Lf3'reat  oonfidenoe  in my  lmowledge  of  hmmn  mture,  and

it  was  1.iis  intention    to  remove  Seward as  soon  as  peace  was  made  in  the  South.    Ilo

greatly  disliifed  i,mdrew  Jcihnson.    ca  c.ne  occasion we  noticed h3n  following us  and  it

displeased Mr.  Lincoln  so much  that  he  turned  and asked  in   a  loud voice,   'Wky  is

tbis  man, '  meaning  fthdl.ew  Johns`)n.   .for.ever  fc>11owing  me?'   `'

`/  qi-us  we  have  oozrduct  sus-nicious   in  its  n.I.Cure  of  rindrew  Jozmson  toward

Mr.  Linoo-n.    .md  the  i+i-orld will  ask  of  all  mahizind  tire  same  a.uestion ni[r.  Ijincoln

asked  of  :r+is  T`.rife.     tmd  whey was  it  that  jizidl.ew  Jc]hason  should  have  followed Eir.  I,incoln`?

Does  St.  i.elen's  story  explain  Johnson's  conduct--Johnson's  moi;ives?''

All  editions  of  ±=emdon.s  and  T„.ie#z's  ''Ijincoln"  in  the  Oongressiona,1

LibrLry  were  carefully  e=:mined  and  no  such  qiuotation nor  one  tliEst  could  I+ossibly

be  construed  to  give  fny  such meaning  Could  be  found  in  Volume  2,   P*ge  252,jfor  on

.hot.rever,   page   273,   Vol.2
any  page  of  either  tie  t`=j.o-or  three-volume  editions.    one  statement/is  o±+  interest:               J



'q#r.  IIincoln  took no  iJreccmtions  to  keep  out  of  the  uny  of  danger.    So

many  threats  had  been mrde  against  him  that  his  f Fiends were  alarmed art frequently

urged  him not  to  go  out  unattended.    To  all  t-i-ieir  entreaties  he  find  the  sarie  answer  -

'If  they  kill  me  the  ne=`=t  man  will  be  jnst  as  bad  for  them.I  in

Phe  rrashington  Star  soon after  the  assassizia,tiozi,  commenting  on  Iiincoln's

opinion  of  Jo}mson.   said:     ''On  the  day before  the meeting  of  the  Ba,1timore  Convention,

Marcus  h  Ward waited  on I`,lr.  Iiincoln and  solicited an expression    of  his  preference  as

to  tlie  Vice-Presidential inee.    mr.  Lincoln  Characterized  him  as  eninently a man

of  all  times,  capable,  honest.  and  of  infleFLible  loyalty &rd  indcrmitable  will,  whose

selection  for  Vice-President  t=rould afford  him  (I.Ir.  Lincoln)   supreme `satisfaotion."

qhe  confession  of  ltzerodt#who  was  ez!eeuted  Jtily  7,   1865, for  his  complicity,

alone  `'.'ould  clear  findrew  Johnsoni..  of  any  connection  vrith  the  assassins.
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a.T. #age  87.

St.   Helen  according  to  Bates,   F.35,   gives  as  the  reas6n  for  his

cop.fession  tha.i  he  desired  ''to  make  knoun  to  the  world  the  purpose,   as  well

aLs  the  motive  which  actuated  me  in  the   commission  of  the  crime  a.gainst  the

life  of  President  Lincoln."     (Bates,.¢age  69)     "That  it  \'7as   just  a  duty  I  owe

nyself  and   family  name  that  the  '`£rorld  might   know."     Ifad  he  been  John  ``,`ilkes

Booth,   he  would  ha.ve  kno`.-/n  that  this  had  been  rather  \r/ell  cared  f or  in  his

diary,   now  in  the  secret  ar.chives  of  the  t,''ar  Department;  the  letter.  left

with  his  brother-in-1a\i/,   J.5.   Cia.rkc,   published  in  the i;;i][£±±±±g~  I;2±±Lr,   .t.'...ashington

D.C„   April  20,1865,   as  part  of  Clarke's  affidavit;  in  the  letter  he  left

with  John  i.atthe\'i7s  for  the  I::{g±±eLnj±L±  I_n.t£±±.±g±r,   .j.rashington,   D.a.,   on  the

afternoon  before  the  crime;  and  in  the  confessions  of  Atzerodt  and  I;.rnold,

two  of  the  conspirators;   (Baltimore  4Eg=i£±:Ln,   January  18,   1869)  and  the

statement  made  by  i;'redrick  -Stone,   the  attorney  for  Payne;  the  conspirator

who  attempted  the  life  of  Secretary  Seward.       ( Lincoln SJ2EL BJQch /age  99,
-

(7)

Lincolniania  Department,   Library  of  CongI.essj     These   state2-.Tents  and  confess-

ions  have  been  quoted  at  length  in  earlier  chapters.

Atlant8  __9qus_t±_i2i_±tL±Qn  publishes  a  letter  dated  i,rfuy  19,   1890,   at

Austin,   Te3ias,   from  R.B.   Garr.ett,   one   of  the  younger  Garr.ett   sons   in  which  he

states i

"The  identification  of  the  dead  rran's  body  wgLs   coxplete.     Standing  by

I   saw  it   done.     First,   the  picture  oi.  the   young  actor`,   so  ``,fell  knoi..7n  every-

where,   \!7as   laid  by  the  dead  ran's   fa,ce.     God  never  made  t`t.7o  men  so  exactly

alike.     Then  poi-fit  by  point  the  printed  description,   held  in  the  hand  of  the

detective,  \r/a.a  verifiecl.    The  height,   color  of  hair,   eyes,   all  exact,   every

scar  and  mark.     Then  the  crooning  evidence,   on  the  arm  of  the  dead  r]ram  was  his

name  in  India,  ink,   done  long  years  before."

(8)       Bates,  /.   64.



(9)
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See  descriptions  in  Chapter   ffi!  .     ReforLtr.iiS§  .„  :_ajor  O'Bierne's

description  of  i;he   section  in  ~"rhich  Bocith  and  Herald  were  hidden  would

iri.dicate  the.i  St.   Helen  and  Bates  knew  very  little  about  lower  l'S.ryland.

I,,:r.   Bates  a.cia_oi.7ledged  to  the  author  that  he  had  never  visited  the  region

as  part  of  his  "extensive  investigatio

(1o)     Bates,Page  129.

(11) If  any  criticism  is  to  be  made  of  the  soldiers  §effiiching  f or  Booth

and  Herald,   it  is  as  I  have  shot.7n  in  earlier  clrapters3   that  they  were  all

f€illing  over  eaLch  other  in  an  attempt  to  capture  the  murderers.     They  were

working  in  squads  and  each  squad  \'ras  very  am:ious  that -±- should  be  the

only  one  to  gain  any  infor"tion  as  to  where  the  criminals  might  be  hidden.

Consequently,   there  was  little  co-operation  bett`7een  the  various  squads.

Should  one  get   some  imf orriiJition  they  wcanted  to  keep  it  to  themselves  and

f ollow  up  their  oi..,rn  clues  T7ithout  the  aid  of  .others.

(12)     Bates,,#age   209:

"Throngh  inquiry  of  a  per`son  no\f/  in  ''JBirpashington  City,   whose  name   it

would  be  an  abuse  of  confidence  to  disclose,   I  learned  that  there  vJas  a

large  family  of  people  by  the  rLane  of  Ruddy  living  .`-;-ithin  the  irmediate

neighborhood  of  Samuel  Cox,   on  the  Potomac  river,  vlrhere  Booth  irras  secreted,

so  that  I  take  it  the  man  killed  at  the  Garrett  farm vras  "Ruddy"  and  not

"Roby"  &s  several  of  the  men  of  t.he  Ruddy  family  a.ns\rfer  the  description

Booth  gave  of  the  man  who  got  his  letters,  pictures,   check,   etc."

\---.`

i------`,``,.__
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OF

Im.    TORE\T  GARNm

Charles  County  -  'haryland.

I  am  eighty-two  year.s  old  and  have  lived  in  this  neighborhood  f or

--    years  and  remember  quite  clearly  events.  happening  dur.ing  the  Civil

'tTj'ar.,    1860-65.

At  the  time  of  the  assassincat, ion  of  President  Lincoln  I  was  living

dour  on  the   "Neck"  not  far   fr.ou  the   home   of  Thomas  A.   Jones®     I  knew  him,   "Col."

Samuel  Cox  of  Cox's  St=i.tion,   and  Franklin  A.   Roby,   ''Col."   Cox's   cver5eer,   all

qii.ite  \'/ell.     .I  also  \7a.a  uell  acquainted  vjrith  Geor.ge  Atzerodt.   who  was  hung  &s

one  of  the  Conspirators.       I  went  hunting  i-./ith  him  a  good  many  times  when we

were  boys  together.

AIzerodt,  as  a  boy,   didn'.u   have  good  "horse   sense"  and  \¥hen  he  grew

up. became  quite  a  drinker  and  A  "good  for  nothing.''

Col.   Cox  `rras  a  wealthy  a.nd  pompous  man  a.nd  pr.actically  ruled  this

sectiontof  the  country.     Tom  Jones  `nras  a  foster  brother  of  ''Col."  Cox  and  a

contrabrand  runner  across  the  Potomac  River  during  the  Civil  \F¥rar.     He  was

arrested  and  imprisoned  for  this  several  times.     Jones  was  the  type  of  man  who

could  put  on  a  "long"   face  and  be  the  most  innocent  looking  fellow  in the  \'7orld

when  he  wanted  to.

Franklin  Roby  was  Col.   Cox's  overseer.     He  was  a  quiet  sort   of  man

`rj.ho  didti_'t   say  much  unless  religiously  aroused.     He  was  a  Shouting  }tyfethodist  by

religion  and  his  sport  v7as  f ox  hunting.

These  three  people,   Col.   Cox,   Tom  Jones,   Franklin  Roby,   and  an  old

negro  by  the  n€une   of  'b7oodland,   who  worked  f or  Jones,   are  the   only  ones  I  ever

heard  of  being  connected  I.j.ith  the  care   of  Booth  and  Herold  at  Cox's  pla.ce.

Jones  took  them  from  there  to  the  Potomac®         I  have  never  heard  of  a  family

of  Ruddy's  and  am  sur.e  that  no  one  by  the  name   of  Ruddy  ever  lived  ar`ound  Cox's

..I



Station.

.L'racklin  Roty.   I  know was  alive  thirty-two  years  ago,   for  I  moved

into  the  place  I  am  now  living`  at  that  time  and  after  I  moved  PLoby  spent  a

nisi,lt  with us.

Roby  always  claimed  that  he  had  very  little  to  do  with  the  care  of

Booth  and  Herold:   that  Jones  was  really  the  man  who  cared  for  them.

Al]out  the  time  Roby was  here  last.  Tom  Jones  had  been  convinced  by

a  young  fellow  by  the  name  of  Mattingly  that  he  should write  a  book  about

Booth  and  that  they.   Jones  and  Mattingly.  wouli'l  sell  it   at  the  World's  Fair

in  Chicago  in  1898.     They went  to  Chicago  and  tried  to  sell  it  from  a  tent.

Jones  was  inside  the  tent  and  I't{attingly  stood  outside  telling  t.he  crowd  that

the  man  who  aided  .Tohn  l../ilkes  Booth  to  escape  was   inside  and  would   sell  them

copies  of  his  book  whic.h  told  the   story.     An  old  Union  soldier  stepped  up  and

sairi  that  he  was  a  boyhooci  friend  of  Abe  I.incc)ln  and  would  like  to  get  hold

of  the  Blankety  -Blank  -Blank  -Blank  t}'ia.t  aided  I.incoln's  murderer  to  es-

cape  a,nd  just  to  let  him  inside.     Jones  heard  this  and  went  out  the  back  end.

of  the  tent,  and  he  and  llattingly  didn't  try  to  sell  any  more  of  the  books.

As  I  remember  when  Roby  :tayed  with us  that  night  Jones  was  men-

tioned  and  the  big  reward  offered  for  Booth  and  IIerold  ancl  Roby  "opined  that

he  I?uessed  Som  was  more  afraid   of  Col.   Cox  than  .he  w€is   of  the  Federal  AI.rayI
or  his  desire  to  have   the  reward.I.

Jones  always  said  that  Herold  had  driven  the  horses,  Booth's  and

Hercjld's,   into  the  quicksand   in  the   oT/a.mp  near  Cox's  place  and  shot   them.   and

that  the  horses  buried  themselves.

itTITNEss3      EUGENIf   funJDD.
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S   T   A   T   E   li`!   E   1``]   T         0   F

CrIARLEs  a,"`usR

Charles  County  -  I.:aryland.

I  aln  the  son  of  John  Carl.ier,   am  sixty  years  old  and  have  lived

'nei.e  all  ny  life.     I  have  never  heard  of  people  living  in  this  neighborhood

or  around  Eel  Altcn  (Cox's  Station)   by  the  name  of  Ruddy.     I  knew  Franklin

Ro'oy  who  \.,rorked  for  Col.   Cox.     He  had  a  son  and  daughter,   father  and  son  are

both  dead,   and  the  da.ughter  nia.rried  somebody  away   from  here;  \','here   she  no'.'i'

lives.   I  do  not  know.     FreLnklin  Roby  died  about  tT,renty  years  ago®

I,'{y  father:.   John  Ga.rner,   F'ranklin  Roby,   myself.  a.nd  several  others

were  out  f ox  hunting  together  a  nuriiber  of  times.     I  remember  Roby  was  a  good

hiethodist  and  would  not   svJeaLr  like  most   of  us.     He  used  a  peculia.r  "cuss"  word

"Dandet,   dandet,"  and  \T/e  used  to  laugh  about  it+     The  only  part  he  played  in

the  Booth  affair  was  to  show  Booth  and  Herold  vj-here  to  hide  until  Jones  cane:
•  I  heard  Jones  say  that  when  he   (Jones)  airive.d  at  Col.   Cox's  that  eventful

mar.ming,   the  Colonel  said,   ''By  God,   Jones,   I  \rrant  you  to  feed  and  care   for

th.ese  men."

( SIGNED)         CHARliES   GARNER.|faG.N.E.DjL|Hap_I[E±
State  of  }'..inryland)

)SS
County  of  Charles)

I,   Eugene  Ill,{udd,   a  Notary  Public,   in  and  for.  the  said  County

in  t'ne  State  af oresaid,   do  hereby  certify,  that  Charles  Garner  personally

kn"rm  to  me  to  1)e  the  sarI}e  person  whose  name  is  g.ubscribed  to  the   f oregoing

instrur,ent,   appeared  bef ore  me  this  day  in  person,  and  acknowledged  that

he  signed,   the  said  instrument.

Given  under  my  hand  and  seal,   this   25th  day  of   July,   19Z1.

I.Iy  comiiission  ©xpires`  l`fay  1,    1922.

®             t±±±±]EELerul±£EE±`EL±rtyLPP_ ,__

Notary  Public ,



State  of  I,faryland)

County  o±`   Charles

iE=iz=

I,   Eugei'ie  A:udd,   &  Notary  Public  in  and  f or.  the  said  County,

in  the  State  aforesaid,   do  hereby  certify,that  Joha  Garner,     persona.1ly

knovm  to  me  to  be  the   same   person  \rj`hose  name   is   subscribed  to  the   I.oregoinL=

instrument,   appeared  before  me  this  day  in  person,   8.nd  ackno\:,i-lodged  that  he

signed  the  sa.id  instrunend.

Given,   under  my  hand  and  seal,  this  25th  day  of  July,   1921.

SIGrJHD EUGm,in
Notary  Public

}L,:y   cormrission  expires  1`bfay   1,   1922.

The  length  of  residence  was  overlooked  when  statement  was  signed.

A  letter  from  Charles  8.  Garner,  the  son,   dated  April  10,   1926,   stat©s!

"ha  Plata,   -Ainryla.nd
April  10,   1936.

"|tr{r.   F.L.   Black

Dearborn,   i`\:lick.

"Dear  Sir3-

Your  letter  received  and  in  reply  will  Say  tl`iat  my  father  was

born  near  lja  Plata,  on  January  7,   1840  and  lived  here  in  this  couiity  all  of

his  life.     As  near  as  I  can  remember  Franklin  Robey  is  buried  at  Ne\Tuton,

however,   if  you  visit  here  during  the  sur-rmer,   I  will  endeavor  to  find  out

more  about  it.

I  remain,

"  Very  tru.Iy  your.s,
Cha,s.   8.  Garner."

i



5425  16th  St..  N.  \£J.,
Washington.  D.  a.

March  8.   1926

}_5

EL  F  11  flack
The  Dearbom  Independent
Dearborn,  mob.

Dear  Sir3

Replying to  your  letter  of the  5rd instant.  I  beg leave  to
state  that Efr  John  Garner  of near b  Plata,  Charles  County,  Efaryland,
is  now  dead.    His  son.  E`tr  Charlie  Garner.  is  living  in  the  old  farm  home
near  Ia  Plato.      Both  are  highly  esteemed  &s  among  Charles  County's  most
estima,ble  citizens.  and anything  either  of  then may  have  said  as  to  what
they  know  or  have  heard  concerning  the  assassination  of  President  Iiincom
may  be  relied  lxpon as  strictly  true.

The  elder  Eta  Garmer vas  living  and  a  groun man  at  the  time  of
the  assassination.    Both Mr  John  Garner  and  his  son,  Charlie.  lived  the
quiet  uneventful  lil.e  of  a  farmer.    B®th  took delight  in all  the  sports
of  a  coTmtry  life3  they  kept  always  three  or  four  good  fox  hounds  and
followed  the  chase with  enthusiasm.    I  hunted  with  then many  times.
Charlie  lives  near  Ija  Plata.  which  is  his  post  office.  and you may  com-
mmicate  with him  there,  and  if  he  has  a  picture  of  his  father,  which
I  suppose  he  has,   I  am  sure  he  would  send  you  one  upon  request.,

I  have  a book entitled  ''J.  Wilkes  Booth,"  written ty  Pom  Jones.
who  put  Booth  across  the  Potomac  river  when  he  made  his  escape  from
Washington after  the  asses-imation,  and would  show  it  to  you  should you
come  to  Washington  at  any  time.    q]here  are  but  few  copies  of  it  and  .I
do  not  trust  it  otit  of  xpy  house.

I  vas  an  old  Confederate  soldiers  iras  in  the  battle  of  Gettys-
burg and  at  AppomaLtox when  General  Iiee  surrendered.

Very  truly yours
A  W  Healo
3425  16th  Street  N.W.
Washington    D.C.

I  regret  that  I  cannot  give you  information  as  to  whore  Eta
Franklin  Robey  (the  name  is  spelled  "Bobey")   is  buried.  but  feel  sore
that  lt may be  asoortained without  much difficulty  from  his  relatives
or  acquaintances  in  Charles  County,  perha,ps  from Efr  Charlie  Ga,rner.

A.   ,f',   N,



(14)

}LfI-
}ir.   Bates  had  in  his  possession,   before  writing  his  book,   a  copy

of  the  April  1896  Century  I\fagazine  wit]i.  Victor  Louis  }t-ason's  story,   'tFour

Lincoln  Conspiracies."    -    This  was  published  eleven  years  before  Bates'

book  and  reference  to  it  will  show  that  it  was  from  this  he  got  his    pictures

of  Booth's  boot,   Dr.   ri,'.{udd's  home,   the  Surratt  Tavern,   eta.

In  this  is  the  correct  story  of  the  connection  of  Franklin  Robey,

Cox's   overseer,   with  Booth  and  Her.old  at  the  Gox  plantatiori..     TdThy  did  not  lLir.

Bates  get  his   stor.y  str&ight   on  i;he   "Ruddy"  nariie   from  this?

(15)       Bates,   #age  80,

(16)       Bates,   £age  66.

:ibsEC-  _


